
Licensing Committee 
Agenda

Wyre Borough Council
Date of Publication: 19 September 2018

Please ask for : Carole Leary
Democratic Services Officer

Tel: 01253 887444

Licensing Committee meeting on Thursday, 27 September 2018 
at 6.00 pm in the Civic Centre, Poulton-le-Fylde

1.  Apologies

2.  Declarations of Interest

Members will disclose any pecuniary and any other significant interests 
they may have in relation to the matters under consideration.

3.  Confirmation of minutes (Pages 1 - 6)

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the two meetings of 
Licensing Committee held on 16 August 2018 and 30 August 2018, 
both attached.

4.  Application for a new Premises Licence - The Alley, 2 - 4 Breck 
Mews, Poulton-Le-Fylde, FY6 7AA

(Pages 7 - 54)

Report of the Service Director Health and Wellbeing attached.

5.  Application for the variation of Hackney Carriage fares (Pages 55 - 68)

Report of the Service Director Health and Wellbeing, attached.

6.  The Animal Welfare (Licensing of Activities Involving Animals) 
(England) Regulations 2018

(Pages 69 - 76)

Report of the Service Director Health and Wellbeing, attached.

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



Licensing Committee Minutes 

The minutes of the Licensing Committee meeting of Wyre Borough Council held on 
Thursday, 16 August 2018 at the Civic Centre, Poulton-le-Fylde.

Licensing Committee members present:
Councillors Michael Barrowclough, Colette Birch, Peter Cartridge, Sue Catterall, Terry 
Lees, Patsy Ormrod, Sue Pimbley, Julie Robinson, Ann Turner and Val Wilson

Apologies:
Councillor(s) Christine Smith, Shaun Turner, Matthew Vincent and Lynn Walmsley

Other councillors present:
None. 

Officers present:
Niky Barrett – Licensing Manager
Mary Grimshaw – Senior Solicitor
Mandy Seddon – Manager of Food Health & Safety & Licensing
David Parry – Taxi Licensing Officer
Carole Leary – Democratic Services Officer

Members of the public present:
Wyre Council Taxi Driver for Item 5

No press attended the meeting.

19 Declarations of Interest 

None.

20 Confirmation of minutes 

The minutes of the Licensing Committee, held on Thursday 26 July 2018, 
were confirmed as a correct record.

21 Exclusion of the Public and Press 

That the public and press be excluded from the meeting whilst agenda item 5 
was being considered, because it referred to exempt information as defined in 
category 1 (information relating to any individual) of Part 1 of Schedule 12(a) 
of the Local Government Act, 1972, as amended by the Local Government 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



(Access to Information) Variation Order 2006 and, that the public interest in 
maintaining the exemptions outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information.

22 Complaint about a licensed Wyre dual driver licence holder 

The Service Director Health and Wellbeing submitted a report to provide 
members of this Extraordinary Licensing Committee with information to assist 
them at a hearing.

The Wyre Council Taxi Driver was present at the meeting, but was not legally 
represented.

The Licensing Manager introduced the report and then everyone present 
reviewed the CCTV footage.

The Wyre Council Taxi Driver addressed the Committee, and gave an 
account of the incident, the circumstances leading up to it, and referred to the 
CCTV footage shown.

Members of the Committee, the Licensing Manager and the Senior Solicitor 
all asked questions of the Wyre Council Taxi Driver, who provided answers.

The Wyre Council Taxi Driver, the Licensing Manager, the Taxi Licensing 
Officer and the Manager of Food Safety, Health and Safety and Licensing left 
the room whilst the Committee Members considered all the facts of the case 
and the representations of the Wyre Council Taxi Driver.

The Wyre Council Taxi Driver, the Licensing Manager, the Taxi Licensing 
Officer and the Manager of Food Safety, Health and Safety and Licensing 
were brought back into the room and the Licensing Committee reconvened 
and the Chairman announced the Committee’s decision to everyone.

RESOLVED that the Wyre Council Taxi Driver’s Dual Driver’s Licence is 
revoked under section 61 (1) (b) of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976 and that revocation should take immediate effect in 
accordance with section 61 (2B) of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976.

The reasons for the decision were: 

That Members carefully considered all the evidence presented at the meeting, 
including the Wyre Council Taxi Driver’s account, previous history, the CCTV 
footage and the considerable seriousness of the incident and determined that 
it was appropriate in all the circumstances to revoke the Licence under 
section 61 (1) (b) of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1976 to take immediate effect in accordance with section 61 (2B) thereof in 
the interests of public safety. 

The meeting started at 6.03 pm and finished at 7.20 pm.

Date of Publication: Tuesday 21 August, 2018

Page 2



Licensing Committee Minutes 

The minutes of the Licensing Committee meeting of Wyre Borough Council held on 
Thursday, 30 August 2018 at the Civic Centre, Poulton-le-Fylde.

Licensing Committee members present:
Councillors Michael Barrowclough, Terry Lees, Sue Pimbley, Julie Robinson, Christine 
Smith, Ann Turner, Matthew Vincent, Lynn Walmsley and Val Wilson

Apologies:
Councillor(s) Colette Birch, Peter Cartridge, Sue Catterall, Patsy Ormrod and Shaun 
Turner

Non-members present: None 

Officers present:
Niky Barrett – Licensing Manager
Mary Grimshaw – Senior Solicitor
David Parry – Taxi Licensing Officer
Mandy Seddon – Manager of Food Health & Safety & Licensing
Carole Leary – Democratic Services Officer

Members of the public present:
Applicant, accompanied by a Director of the Taxi firm for Item 5 only.
Applicant for Item 6 only.

No members of the press were present.

Councillor Matthew Vincent left the meeting after the decision was taken on Item 5. 
He did not have any involvement in the discussion or decision taken, on Item 6.

23 Declarations of Interest 

Councillor Robinson declared an Other Significant Interest in Item 5 – 
Complaint about a Licensed Wyre Dual Driver Licence holder – as she has 
used that particular taxi firm and also knows one of the Directors of that 
company, as he is a Stalmine Parish Councillor, who had come to the 
Licensing meeting, to support the licensed Wyre Dual Driver. She was 
satisfied though, that as she did not know the licensed Wyre Dual Driver, that 
this would not prejudice her judgement, nor give rise to a conflict of interest 
and therefore she stayed in the meeting and took part in the decision making.

Page 3



Councillor Pimbley also declared an Other Significant Interest in Item 5 – 
Complaint about a Licensed Wyre Dual Driver Licence holder – as she has 
used that particular taxi firm too. She was satisfied though, that as she did not 
know the licensed Wyre Dual Driver, that this would not prejudice her 
judgement, nor give rise to a conflict of interest and therefore she stayed in 
the meeting and took part in the decision making.

24 Confirmation of minutes 

The minutes of the Licensing Sub-Committee meeting held on Tuesday 7 
August, 2018, were confirmed as a correct record, by both Cllrs Robinson and 
Smith and unanimously agreed by the Committee.

25 Exclusion of the Public and Press 

RESOLVED That the public and press be excluded from the meeting whilst 
agenda items 5 & 6 were being considered, because they referred to exempt 
information as defined in category 1 (information relating to any individual) of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12(a) of the Local Government Act, 1972, as amended by 
the Local Government (Access to Information) Variation Order 2006 and, that 
the public interest in maintaining the exemptions outweighs the public interest 
in disclosing the information.

26 Complaint about a licensed Wyre Dual Driver Licence holder 

The Service Director Health and Wellbeing submitted a report to provide 
members of the Licensing Committee with information to assist them at a 
hearing. To determine as to whether or not a licensed Wyre Dual Driver can 
still be considered a fit and proper person and still eligible to hold a Wyre 
Council Dual Driver’s Licence.

The licensed Wyre Dual Driver was present at the meeting and was 
supported by a Director of the taxi firm he works for, but he was not legally 
represented.

The Licensing Manager introduced the report.

The Taxi Driver spoke to the Committee, explaining the circumstances of the 
incident and provided an account of what took place that night, as referred to 
within the report.

The Taxi Driver answered questions from the Members. The Director of the 
taxi firm employing the Taxi Driver also spoke in support and answered 
questions from the Members. 

The Taxi Driver, the Director, the Taxi Licensing Officer, the Licensing 
Manager and the Manager of Food Health & Safety & Licencing then left the 
room whilst the Committee Members considered the case in closed session.

The Licensing Committee then reconvened and the Chairman announced the 
Committee’s decision to everyone.

Page 4



RESOLVED that the Licensed Wyre Dual Driver is eligible to hold a Wyre 
Council Dual Driver’s Licence, but that he be suspended for a two week 
period (to take place 22 days after receipt of the decision letter) together with 
a written warning, which will be placed on file.

The reasons for the decision were:

The Committee acknowledged that this was a serious matter but considered it 
to be an isolated moment of misjudgement, that was unlikely to be repeated. 
The Committee noted how remorseful he was about the incident which 
appeared to be genuine and also noted his full cooperation with the Council’s 
investigation. The Committee considered a suspension of 4 weeks to be 
reasonable, but noted that he had already been suspended for two weeks by 
his employer and therefore considered a further two week suspension to be a 
sufficient deterrent and was a reasonable and proportionate period in the 
circumstances. In reaching this decision, the Committee noted that he had 
held Wyre driver’s licences for almost 5 years and he had a clear full driving 
licence with no prior criminal convictions. Also, he had never been before the 
Committee previously and that this was the first complaint that the Local 
Authority had received.

The Licensing Authority confirmed it has an overriding duty to protect the 
public when considering the conduct of licensed drivers. The ongoing scrutiny 
of the conduct and behaviour of licensed drivers, such as this one, before 
Members at this meeting, forms part of that process and wants to provide 
assurance to the public, that all those entrusted to convey passengers, are 
and continue to be, “fit and proper” to hold Wyre Dual Driver Licences. 

27 New applicant for a Wyre Dual Driver's Licence with historic criminal 
convictions and a motoring offence 

The Service Director Health and Wellbeing submitted a report to provide 
members of the Licensing Committee with information to assist them at a 
hearing. Additional letters of support for the applicant, which had been 
received after the agenda had been published, were handed out to the 
Committee.

The Applicant was present at the meeting, but was not legally represented.

The Licensing Manager introduced the report.

The applicant spoke to the Committee, explaining the circumstances of her 
past offences, as referred to within the report with regard to her past conduct.

Members of the Committee and the Licensing Manager asked questions of 
the applicant, and she provided explanations of the incidents up to the 
present date, where she confirmed to the Committee, a current motoring 
offence.

The applicant, the Taxi Licensing Officer, the Licensing Manager and the 

Page 5



Manager of Food Health & Safety & Licensing then left the room whilst the 
Committee Members considered the application in closed session.

The Licensing Committee then reconvened and the Chairman announced the 
Committee’s decision to everyone.

RESOLVED that Wyre Council on this occasion were not willing to grant a 
Wyre Dual Driver’s Licence.

The reasons for the decision:

The Committee considered all the written evidence within the report and also 
gave careful consideration to the verbal explanation given by the applicant, 
but decided not to grant a Wyre Dual Driver’s Licence as the applicant did not 
satisfy the criteria in the policy, in particular sections 10.3 and 15.1  and  were 
not able to find any  exceptional reasons to depart from the policy under 
section 1.10

The Licensing Authority confirmed it has an overriding duty to protect the 
public when considering the conduct of all licensed drivers. The ongoing 
scrutiny of the conduct and behaviour of Wyre’s licensed drivers, forms part of 
that process and they want to provide assurance to the public, that all those 
entrusted to convey passengers, are “fit and proper” to hold Wyre Dual Driver 
Licences. 

The meeting started at 6.00 pm and finished at 7.13 pm.

Date of Publication: Tuesday 4 September, 2018

Page 6



Report of: Meeting Date Item 
no.

Mark Broadhurst,
Service Director 

Health and Wellbeing
Licensing Committee 27 September 2018 4

Application for a new Premises Licence – The Alley, 2 - 4 Breck Mews,  
Poulton-le-Fylde, FY6 7AA

1. Purpose of report

1.1 To assist Members to determine an application submitted under section 
17 of the Licensing Act 2003 by Sandra Jane James, for a new premises 
licence.

2. Outcomes

2.1 That the application for a new premises licence be determined.

3. Recommendation

3.1 That Members consider the application submitted by Sandra Jane James 
and the representation from a local resident and determine the application. 

4. Background

 4.1
 

4.2

4.3
 
 

On 7 August 2018, the Licensing Unit received an application from 
Sandra Jane James, for a new premises licence in respect of 2 – 4 
Breck Mews, Poulton le Fylde, FY6 7AA (Appendix 1).

The applicant wishes to provide the following licensable activities:

Activity Mon - Sun

Sale of alcohol (‘on’ and ‘off’ sales) 09:00 – 00:00
Recorded Music (indoors) 09:00 – 00:00
Open to the Public 09:00 – 00:30

In addition, the applicant wishes to sell alcohol on New Year’s Eve 
until 01:00 and remain open to the public until 01:30. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



4.4

4.5

4.6

The premises will be created by knocking through two separate 
commercial units. One of which was previously licensed for the sale 
of alcohol under the trading name Aged in Oak.

An application seeking the required change of use and associated 
building alterations was submitted to the council’s planning 
department in April. The planning application seeks authorisation to 
trade between 09:00 and midnight, seven days a week.

At the time of writing this report, the applicant has not yet been 
advised if that application has been granted.

5. Key issues and proposals

 5.1
 
 

5.2
 
 
 

5.3
 
 

5.4
 
 
5.5
 
 

5.6
 
 
 

5.7

5.8

5.9

Section 18 (3) of the Licensing Act 2003, as amended, requires the 
Licensing Authority to hold a hearing to consider the application and 
any relevant representations, within twenty working days following 
the end of the statutory twenty-eight day consultation period, which 
ended on 4 September 2018.

The Police have been consulted and have agreed a number of 
additional conditions to promote the prevention of crime and 
disorder licensing objective to be included on the operating 
schedule, if a licence is granted (Appendix 2).

Environmental Health have been consulted and agreed additional 
conditions with the applicant, to mitigate against nuisance if a 
licence is granted (Appendix 3).

There have been no responses from any of the other Responsible 
Authorities.

The application has been advertised in accordance with the 
Regulations and at the end of the consultation period there was one 
outstanding representation from local residents (Appendix 4).

The objectors are primarily concerned that if granted the premises 
and their clientele will potentially cause noise nuisance. They also 
refer to late night disturbance from this type of venue and the impact 
that has on their grandchildren when they stay overnight. 

To assist all parties to the hearing, Appendix 5 is a comprehensive 
list of the agreed conditions that would form Annex 2, of the licence 
should one be granted.

A location plan is provided at Appendix 6.

When considering the application Members should take into 
account the Council’s own Statement of Licensing Policy. The 
following paragraphs are particularly relevant to this application and 
are reproduced in Appendix 7:

Page 8



5.10

5.11

5.12

5.13

6.1  Planning; 
7.    General approach to licensing;
18.  Need for licensed premises;
19.  Cumulative impact of a concentration of licensed premises
       Wyre Key Message 25.

Members are also directed to the Statutory Guidance issued under 
section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 and in particular the following 
sections: 9.1, 9.3, 9.4, 9.31 and 9.37 to 9.44 inclusive, which are 
reproduced at Appendix 8.

After having regard to the representation, the Council’s Statement 
of Policy and the Statutory Guidance, the Committee must 
determine if it is satisfied that granting the application would 
undermine one or more of the licensing objectives. 

If it is satisfied that one or more of the objectives would not be 
undermined by granting the application, it must grant the application 
it in the terms applied for.

If, however, it is not, Members must consider what steps are 
appropriate to secure the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
It may take any of the following steps:
 Grant the licence subject to such conditions that the authority 

considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives.

 Exclude from the scope of the licence, any of the licensable 
activities to which the application relates (This can include 
revising the permitted hours for licensable activities).

 Reject the whole or part of the application.

Financial and legal implications

Finance There are no financial implications directly 
associated with this application.

Legal

Any party to the hearing has the right of appeal to the 
Magistrates Court if they are aggrieved by the 
decision. The hearing should be conducted following 
the principles of natural justice and in accordance 
with the Council’s own hearing procedure.

Other risks/implications: checklist
If there are significant implications arising from this report on any issues marked 
with a  below, the report author will have consulted with the appropriate 
specialist officers on those implications and addressed them in the body of the 
report. There are no significant implications arising directly from this report, for 
those issues marked with an x.

Page 9



 risks/implications  / x  risks/implications  / x
community safety   asset management x
equality and diversity x  climate change x
sustainability x  data protection x
health and safety x   

 
report author telephone no. email date
Niky Barrett 887236 Nicola.Barrett@wyre.gov.uk 12 Sept 2018

 
List of background papers:

name of document date where available for 
inspection

Wyre Council Statement of 
Licensing Policy 2016 - 2021 Licensing section

 List of appendices

Appendix 1 - Application
Appendix 2 - Lancashire Constabulary mediation
Appendix 3 - Wyre Environmental Health mediation 
Appendix 4 - Representation from Other Persons
Appendix 5 - Draft Annex 2
Appendix 6 - Location Plan
Appendix 7 - Excerpt from Wyre Statement of Licensing Policy    
Appendix 8 - Excerpt from the Statutory S182 Guidance

Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Mr & Mrs Richard Horabin
 Lockwood Avenue

Poulton le Fylde
Lancashire 

FY6 7...  

16/09/18

Dear Ms Barrett

THE ALLEY BAR 2-4 THE MEWS POULTON / NEW PREMISES 
ALCOHOL LICENCE

Thank you for your email reply to our objection letter regarding the new premises 
licence for The Alley. Unfortunately the list of conditions are not sufficient to appease 
our concerns with regards to the potential for noise disturbances from the venue The 
Alley. 

The said conditions are not detailed or specific with regards to :
the specified time schedule of sound emission records  
the type of equipment required to conduct the regular assessment of noise coming 
from the premises
the noise level to be agreed by a Wyre Borough Council Environmental Health Officer 

The conditions do not detail or explain to a layperson like ourselves key information, 
for example point 6 with regards to " Noise from regulated entertainment at the 
licenced premises shall not exceed the background noise level when measured as an 
LAeq,5min in any one third octave band at the boundary with any noise sensitive 
premises "  I have been informed that LAeq,5min is equivalent to 90DB of noise, all 
very vague & ambiguous !

We genuinely hope that The Alley operates as a responsible venue & not to the 
detriment of the nearby residents, but unfortunately we have not been convinced that 
the conditions agreed by Wyre Borough & the Police are sufficient to control any 
potential nuisance and we will not be withdrawing our objection. 

I do hope that yourself & the other Officers who work for Wyre Borough in this 
department will act as promptly in the future should there be any failure of these 
conditions.

Yours sincerely

Mrs Brenda Horabin

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 4

Report of Meeting Date Item 
no

Mark Broadhurst,
Service Director

Health and Wellbeing
Licensing Committee 27 September 2018 5

APPLICATION FOR THE VARIATION OF HACKNEY CARRIAGE FARES

1. Purpose of Report
1.1 To provide Members of the Licensing Committee with information to assist 

them at a hearing to consider a proposal from the Wyre Hackney Carriage 
(Taxis) Association for a variation in the maximum fares which may be 
charged by hackney carriages licensed by Wyre Council.

2. Outcomes

2.1 To recommend to Cabinet any amendments to the table of fares for Wyre 
licensed hackney carriages.

3. Recommendation
3.1 That Members reconsider the table of fares for hackney carriages within the 

Borough in the light of the proposal from the Wyre Hackney Carriage 
Association for a variation in the maximum scale of charges.

4. Background

4.1 The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 allows district 
councils to fix the maximum rates of fares for hackney carriage journeys (but 
not for private hire vehicles which are determined by market forces). No time 
period however is set for the review of such fares.

4.2 The last variation, resulting in an increase in the tariff, was approved by the 
Licensing Committee in March 2011 and implemented on 20 April that year. It 
was for an average increase of 5.09% (tariff 1) and 4.65% (tariff 2). A copy of 
the current table of fares for Wyre is attached at Appendix 1.

4.3 The provision of taxis is an integral part of the transport infrastructure and is 
particularly influential in the transportation of individuals late at night when bus 
services have ceased. The provision of affordable taxis assist in community 

Page 55

Agenda Item 5



Page 2 of 4

safety by ensuring people are removed from town centres safely and helps to 
reduce the incidence of drink driving.

4.4 Hackney carriages are a vital form of transport for the disabled who may have 
difficulties accessing other forms of public transport.  It is important therefore 
that fares are maintained at a level which will encourage investment in DDA 
compliant and low emission vehicles yet remain affordable to disabled people.

5. Key Issues and Proposals

5.1 On 19 July 2018 the recently reformed Wyre Hackney Carriage Association, 
representing the five hackney carriage companies and independent hackney 
proprietors, submitted a proposal to vary the tariff for hackney carriage 
journeys in the Borough and vary the start time for tariff 2 from Monday to 
Thursday and separately on a Friday. A copy of their proposal is attached at 
Appendix 2.

5.2 The proposal consists of five options, the first two of the options are for varying 
the start time of tariff 2 and the other three options are for varying the yardages 
of tariffs 1 and 2 and if implemented will have the following effects on the 
existing tariffs:-

1) Option 1 is to change the start time of tariff 2 from 11:00pm to 10:00pm 
for hiring’s on Monday to Thursday inclusive. This option is considered 
by the taxi trade as not to affect daytime shoppers during the week.

2) Option 2 is to change the start time of tariff 2 from 10:00pm to 8:00pm 
for hiring’s on a Friday. This option is to realise a slightly higher earning 
potential on Friday’s only.

The following three options affect the base distance travelled and flag fall 
distances. Of these options only 1 (or none) could be accepted (the metric 
conversions to metres are approximate):
3) Option 3 - Tariff 1: Decrease the base yardage from 505yds to 450yds 

(461.77m to 411.48m) and decrease the flag fall yardage from 210yds 
to 180yds (192.02 to 164.59m).
Tariff 2: Decrease the base yardage from 400yds to 375yds (365.76m 
to 342.90m) and decrease the flag fall yardage from 160yds to 140yds 
(146.30 to 128.02m).

4) Option 4 - Tariff 1: Decrease the base yardage from 505yds to 475yds 
(461.77m to 434.34m) and decrease the flag fall yardage from 210yds 
to 190yds (192.02 to 173.74m).
Tariff 2: Decrease the base yardage from 400yds to 380yds (365.76m 
to 347.47m) and decrease the flag fall yardage from 160yds to 145yds 
(146.30 to 132.59m).

5) Option 5 - Tariff 1: Decrease the base yardage from 505yds to 490yds 
(461.77m to 448.06m) and decrease the flag fall yardage from 210yds 
to 145yds (192.02 to 132.59m).
Tariff 2: Decrease the base yardage from 400yds to 390yds (365.76m 
to 356.62m) and decrease the flag fall yardage from 160yds to 150yds 
(146.30 to 137.16m).

Page 56



Page 3 of 4

5.3 Members will notice that within the proposal there is the potential to be 
selective around which of the options they approve, or alternatively, Members 
may consider rejecting the entire proposal.

5.4 An analysis of the cost of journeys under the current tariff 1 and what they 
would cost with the percentage increase if one of the Association’s proposals 
were approved is attached as Appendix 3 (options 3, 4 and 5). Tariff 1 is the 
weekday tariff operating from Monday to Friday with Tariff 2 operating during 
the evening, weekends and Bank Holidays. Tariff comparisons are normally 
based within the trade on a distance of 2 miles at tariff 1.
Current fare Option 3 Option 4 Option 5
£5.60 £6.20 + 10.71% £6.00 + 7.14% £5.80 + 3.57%

5.5 Appendix 4 shows the comparison of tariff tables of fares for neighbouring 
councils, over a set distance of 2 miles on tariff 1 and including their recent 
variations. These figures are confirmed in the national Private Hire & Taxi 
Monthly magazine issued during September 2018:
Fylde - increased 1st February 2018 - £6.10
Blackpool - increased July 2018 - £5.80
Lancaster - increased 1st July 2017 - £5.60
Preston - increased 2017 - £6.00

5.6

5.7

Members are now asked to consider the tariff variation proposal from the 
Wyre Hackney Carriage association and agree their recommendation to the 
Cabinet.

Following the decision of Cabinet, the Council must advertise its intention to 
vary the table of fares in accordance with the provisions contained in section 
65 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, which 
require:

(2) (a) When a District Council make or vary a table of fares they shall publish 
in at least one local newspaper circulating in the District a notice setting out 
the table of fares or the variation thereof and specify the period, which shall 
not be less than fourteen days from the date of the first publication of the 
notice, within which and the manner in which objections to the table of fares 
or variation can be made.
(b) A copy of the notice referred to in paragraph (a) of this subsection shall for 
the period of fourteen days from the date of the first  publication thereof be 
deposited at the offices of the Council which published the notice, and shall at 
all reasonable hours be open to public inspection without payment.
(3) If no objection to a table of fares or variation is duly made within the 
period specified in the notice referred to in subsection (2) of this section, or if 
all objections so made are withdrawn, the table of fares or variation shall 
come into operation on the date of the expiration of the period specified in the 
notice or the date of withdrawal of the objection or, if more than one, of the 
last objection, whichever is the later.

Page 57



Page 4 of 4

(4) If objection is duly made as aforesaid and is not withdrawn, the District 
Council shall set a further date, not later than two months after the first 
specified date, on which the table of fares shall come into force with or 
without modifications as decided by them after consideration of the 
objections.

Financial and legal implications

Finance There are no direct financial implications for the Council in setting the 
fares for hackney carriages, excepting the statutory advertising cost in a 
local newspaper.

Legal The power to set the fares for hackney carriages is contained in section 
65 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.  No 
such powers exist for the regulation of private hire fares.

Other risks/implications: checklist
If there are significant implications arising from this report on any issues marked with a  
below, the report author will have consulted with the appropriate specialist officers on 
those implications and addressed them in the body of the report.  There are no significant 
implications arising directly from this report for those issues marked with an X.

risks/implications  / x risks/implications  / x
community safety  asset management x
equality and diversity  climate change x
sustainability x data protection x
health and safety x

Report Author Telephone no email date
David Parry 887225 david.parry@wyre.gov.uk 13/09/2018

List of background papers
Name of document date where available for inspection
Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire Licensing Policy V05 1 April 2018 Licensing Section

LIST OF APPENDICES

Appendix 1 Current Wyre table of tariffs
Appendix 2 Wyre Hackney Owners Association variation request
Appendix 3 Comparison of proposed Wyre journey costs on tariff 1 and 2
Appendix 4 Comparison of costs of neighbouring boroughs

Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



Report of: Meeting Date Item 
no.

Mark Broadhurst,
Service Director 

Health and Wellbeing
Licensing Committee 27 September 2018 6

The Animal Welfare (Licensing of Activities Involving Animals) (England) 
Regulations 2018

1. Purpose of report

1.1

1.2

To inform Members about the new legislation which will govern how the 
Council licenses activities involving animals from 1 October 2018.

To set out the proposed fees to be charged for each licensable activity.

2. Outcomes

2.1 That the report be noted and the fees agreed.

3. Recommendation

3.1 That Members consider the report and agree the proposed fee schedule. 

4. Background

4.1

4.2

Wyre Council is responsible for regulating a variety of animal related 
activities and issues licences covering:

    Animal boarding establishments
    Dog breeding
    Pet shops
    Riding establishments
    Zoo licences
    Dangerous wild animals

The Council currently licences:

 14 Animal Boarding Establishments (kennels and catteries)
 19 Home Boarders
 2 Dog Crèches
 7 Pet Shops

Page 69

Agenda Item 6



4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

 6 Riding Schools

All of these licences are issued for a maximum of twelve months and expire 
on the 31 December each year, in accordance with the current legislation.

 4 Dog Breeders

These licences are issued for 12 months and expire on the anniversary of 
the grant.  

 1 Zoo

This licence is issued for six years under the Zoo Licensing Act 1981 and 
will not be affected by the new Regulations.

There are currently no licences in Wyre issued under the Dangerous Wild 
Animals Act 1976 and like Zoos, Dangerous Wild Animal licensing will not 
be affected by the new Regulations.

Wyre Council licences for kennels, catteries, pet shops, dog breeders and 
riding establishments, are issued subject to the Chartered Institute of 
Environmental Health’s model conditions. 

Home boarding and dog crèche licences are issued subject Wyre Council’s 
own standard conditions, as there are no published model conditions for 
these relatively new areas of animal businesses.

Lancashire County Council is currently responsible for registering any 
performing animals based within the county and enquiries have established 
that there are three such registrations in force in Wyre at the moment. 
These registrations do not have an expiry date.

5. Detailed Considerations

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

The Government have introduced the Animal Welfare (Licensing of 
activities involving animals) (England) Regulations 2018, which will 
significantly change the way animal businesses are inspected and licensed 
after 1 October 2018.

DEFRA finalised the procedural guidance for Local Authorities in July and 
these nine separate guidance documents were published on the Canine 
and Feline Sector Group’s website in early August (www.cfsg.org.uk).

With the exception of dog breeding, relevant activities that form part of a 
business will require licensing. The circumstances which a local authority 
must take into account in determining whether an activity is being carried 
on in the course of a business include; whether the operator makes any 
sale by, or otherwise carries on, the activity with a view to making a profit, 
or earns any commission or fee from the activity. 

The new regulations define the various animal activities that will be 
regulated as follows:

Page 70



5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

5.11

 Providing or arranging for the provision of accommodation for other 
people’s cats or dogs in the course of a business. This is further broken 
down into kennels, catteries, home boarding and dog day care.

 Breeding three or more litters of puppies in any twelve month period; or 
breeding dogs and advertising a business of selling dogs.

  Selling animals as pets (or with a view to their being later resold as pets) 
in the course of a business.

 Hiring out horses in the course of a business for either riding or 
instruction, or both.

  Keeping or training animals for exhibition in the course of a business for 
educational or entertainment purposes, either to any audience attending 
in person, or by the recording of visual images of them by any form of 
technology, or both.

Licences will be issued for one, two or three years, with the length of 
licence being determined following a comprehensive inspection of the 
applicant’s premises and completion by the inspecting officer, of the 
prescribed risk matrix. 

Licences for the exhibition of animals will be granted for three years and 
are not subject to the risk rating.

Each licensed premises should also receive one unannounced inspection 
during the currency of their licence.

The Regulations require the local authority to appoint one or more suitably 
qualified inspectors. Until 1 October 2021 existing local authority officers 
who have at least twelve months experience in inspecting licensed animal 
premises will be deemed to be suitably qualified. Wyre currently has two 
such officers.

After that date inspecting officers will have to hold a Level 3 certificate 
granted by a body, recognised and regulated by the Office of Qualifications 
and Examinations Regulation, which oversees the training and 
assessment of persons in inspecting and licensing animal activities 
businesses, confirming the passing of an independent examination.

All licences issued, except exhibiting animals, must be given a star rating, 
of between one and five stars, similar to the scores on the doors for food 
establishments. The star rating must be shown on the licence and DEFRA 
also recommends that the star rating for each licence is also published on 
the council’s website.

Each of the eight animal activities have prescribed conditions that must be 
applied to each licence issued, creating consistency across England of the 
standards to be applied to licensable activities involving animals. 

Page 71



5.12

5.13

5.14

5.15

5.16

5.17

5.18

5.19

5.20

5.21

5.22

The transitional arrangements provide for all existing licences issued up to 
the 30 September 2018 under the current legislation, to remain in force 
until their natural expiry. Thereafter applicants wishing to continue to 
provide relevant activities involving animals will have to apply for and be 
granted new licences under the new Regulations.

Existing performing animal registrations will remain valid until 1 April 2019. 
After this date anyone training or keeping animals for exhibition will need a 
new licence.

To ensure fairness, local authorities must have an appeal procedure in 
place for operators to dispute their star rating, if they feel that the star rating 
given does not reflect the animal welfare standards and risk level of their 
business at the time of the inspection.

Businesses have twenty one days following the issue of a licence, in which 
to appeal their star rating. 

Provision has been made for appeals in this respect to be determined by 
the Head of Environmental Health and Community Safety or in his absence 
by the Food Safety and Licensing Manager.

If an operator makes improvements to their business and wishes to 
increase their star rating, they may apply for a re-rating inspection. They 
must pay a fee for this type of inspection.

Any operator who is aggrieved by a decision by a local authority to refuse 
to grant or renew a licence, or to revoke or vary a licence, may appeal to 
the First-tier Tribunal, which will be administered by HM Courts and 
Tribunal Service. Any such appeal must be lodged within twenty eight days 
following the decision.

The animal licensing scheme falls within the definition of ‘services’ and is 
therefore subject to the EU Services Directive. 

In preparing the proposed fee schedule (Appendix 1) officers have had 
regard to the LGA guidance on locally set licence fees, the Provision of 
Services Regulations 2009, the draft guidance on setting fees for activities 
involving animals and the principles in the Regulators’ Code.

In accordance with relevant case law, the proposed fees have been split 
into two parts – the application fee, payable at the time of submission to 
cover the council’s costs in considering and determining the application, 
with the remainder of the licence fee, which covers ongoing enforcement 
and compliance requirements, being payable before the licence becomes 
effective.

The proposed fees are based on the reasonably anticipated costs involved
in administering the new licensing regime. Officers will undertake a full 
review of these fees in 2020/21, once a full year of data is available on the 
actual hours and costs involved in dealing with animal licensed premises.

Page 72



Financial and legal implications

Finance

Assuming that all existing licence holders apply for new licences and 
are granted 1 year licences, the anticipated income from fees will be 
£11,571 which is in line with current estimates. However some 
licences may attract a higher fee in 2018/19 if they are eligible for a 
2 or 3 year licence following the initial inspection. 

There is likely to be an increase in the number of licences applied 
for after 1 Oct 2018 as the new regulations increase the scope of 
activities which require a licence. However it is also possible that at 
the point of renewal in 2019/20, some existing licenced premises 
may be unable to satisfy the new higher standards, despite being 
given 12 months to upgrade their facilities and would no longer 
qualify for a licence. 

Legal

The Council has a statutory duty to implement the new Regulations 
and deliver the revised animal licensing regime.

Other risks/implications: checklist
If there are significant implications arising from this report on any issues marked 
with a  below, the report author will have consulted with the appropriate 
specialist officers on those implications and addressed them in the body of the 
report. There are no significant implications arising directly from this report, for 
those issues marked with an x.

 risks/implications  / x  risks/implications  / x
community safety   asset management x
equality and diversity x  climate change x
sustainability x  data protection x
health and safety x   

 
report author telephone no. email date
Niky Barrett 887236 Nicola.Barrett@wyre.gov.uk 13 Sept 2018

 
List of background papers:

name of document date where available for 
inspection

The Animal Welfare (Licensing of 
Activities Involving Animals) (England) 
Regulations 2018, SI 2018/486

16 April 18 Licensing Office

DEFRA Procedural guidance notes for 
local authorities July 2018 Licensing Office

DEFRA Guidance notes for conditions for 
providing boarding in kennels for dogs July 2018 Licensing Office

Page 73



DEFRA Guidance notes for conditions for 
providing boarding for cats July 2018 Licensing Office

DEFRA Guidance notes for conditions for 
providing home boarding for dogs July 2018 Licensing Office

DEFRA Guidance notes for conditions for 
providing day care for dogs July 2018 Licensing Office

DEFRA Guidance notes for conditions for 
breeding dogs July 2018 Licensing Office

DEFRA Guidance notes for conditions for 
selling animals as pets July 2018 Licensing Office

DEFRA Guidance notes for conditions for 
hiring out horses July 2018 Licensing Office

DEFRA Guidance notes for conditions for 
keeping or training animals for exhibition July 2018 Licensing Office

Open for business: LGA guidance on 
locally set licence fees May 2017 Licensing Office

Draft Animal Welfare Licence fees – a 
practical guide to fee setting Aug 2018 Licensing Office

Provision of Services Regulations 2009 28 Dec 09 Licensing Office
Process mapping and officer cost 
calculations Sept 2018 Licensing Office

 List of appendices

 Appendix 1 – Proposed fee schedule

Page 74



APPENDIX 1

Proposed Animal Licensing fees from 1 Oct 
2018   

Total 
licence 

fee

 

 

Total 
licence 

fee

Animal Boarding application fee - £119  *Hiring Horses application fee - £154
Up to 20 units (+ £21 for each addl 10 units)  New - 1 year £283
New - 1 year £236  2 year £448
2 year £366  3 year £531
3 year £430  Renew - 1 year £247
Renewal - 1 year £223  2 year £413
2 year £353  3 year £496
3 year £418  Re-rating inspection fee £104
Re-rating inspection fee £81  Up to 20 horses  (+ £21 for each addl 10)
Home Boarding application fee - £93  Train/exhibit animals application fee - £89
New - 1 year £191  3 year £213
2 year £320  Zoo Licence  
3 year £385  6 year £594
Renew - 1 year £184  4 year £484
2 year £314  Dangerous Wild Animal Licence
3 year £379  2 year £316
Re-rating inspection fee £56  * plus vet fees
Dog Creche application fee - £105    
New - 1 year £209    
2 year £339    
3 year £404    
Renew - 1 year £197    
2 year £327    
3 year £391    
Re-rating inspection fee £68    
*Dog Breeding application fee - £114    
Up to 5  bitches (+ £10 for each addl 5 bitches)    
New - 1 year £218    
2 year £348    
3 year £413    
Renew - 1 year £239    
2 year £369    
3 year £434    
Re-rating inspection fee £81    
Selling pets application fee - £116   
New - 1 year £239    
2 year £369    
3 year £434    
Renew - 1 year £233    
2 year £363    
3 year £428    
Re-rating inspection fee £81    

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Confirmation of minutes
	Minutes
	Licensing Committee Minutes 30 August 2018

	4 Application for a new Premises Licence - The Alley, 2 - 4 Breck Mews, Poulton-Le-Fylde, FY6 7AA
	The Alley, 2 - 4 Breck Mews, Poulton-Le-Fylde - Appendices
	The Alley, 2 - 4 Breck Mews, Poulton-Le-Fylde - Objection

	5 Application for the variation of Hackney Carriage fares
	Application for the variation of Hackney Carriage fares - Appendices

	6 The Animal Welfare (Licensing of Activities Involving Animals) (England) Regulations 2018
	The Animal Welfare (Licensing of Activities Involving Animals) (England) Regulations 2018 - Appendix


